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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

Report on the standalone financial statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Bharat Road Network
Limited (“The Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information for the year then ended.

Management responsibility for the standalone financial statement

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the'audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.)

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2016 and its
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 25.8 to the standalone financial statements regarding investments in
Special Purpose Vehicles formed as per Concession Agreement and guidelines of respective
Government authority and treatment of such investments as Qualifying Asset which is based on the
legal opinion and capitalization of directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in respect thereof.
Our opinion is neither a reservation, nor a qualification or an adverse remark in respect of this
matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Il.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

IIl.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the cash flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

\ In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

\ On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 31st
March, 2016 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as at 31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

v With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

VIt With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.)

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial
position of its standalone financial statements — Refer Note No. 25.3 to the
standalone financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. -302082E

Membership No. 17643
Partner

Place of Signature: Kolkata

» KOLKA"
Dated: the 19"day of September , 2016 KATA



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.)

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

Statement referred to in our report of even date to the members of Bharat Road Network Limited on
the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

b)

c)

(ii)

(iii)

a)

b)

c)

(iv)

(v)

quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. To
the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

As the Company has no immovable property, provisions of clause {i)(c ) of para 3 of the
said order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company has no inventory, provisions of clause (ii) of para 3 of the said order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has granted loans to two bodies corporate covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loan has
been granted to the aforesaid bodies corporate were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

The aforesaid bodies corporate have been regular in payment of the principal and
interest as stipulated.

There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan grated to these bodies corporate

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loans, guarantees and securities covered under Section 185 of
the Act. The Company has complied with Section 186(1) of the Act in relation to
investments made by the Company. The remaining provisions related to Section 186 of
the Act do not apply to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. The directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India are not applicable to the Company.

*



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.)

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

(vi)

(vii)

The provisions regarding maintenance of the cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added tax or cess and any other statutory dues, to the
extent applicable, have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us there were no outstanding
statutory dues, as on 31st of March, 2016 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b) The disputed statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 23,10,000/- that have not been deposited
on account of matters pending before appropriate authorities are as under:

SI.  Name of the Statute  Natureof Periodto  Amount Forum where

No. dues which ) the dispute is
pertains pending
1 Income Tax Act, Income Tax  2012-13  23,10,000 CIT(Appeals)
1961

(viii} The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

or banks. The Company has not taken any loan from Government and has not issued any
debentures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. On the basis of our examination and according
to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of term loans have
been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year that causes the standalone financial statements materially misstated.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration

in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the said order
is not applicable to the Company.

.«J&ATA



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.)

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

On the basis of our examination of records and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore,
clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of our examination of records and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not has entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them during the year under the provisions of
section 192 of the Act. Therefore, clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not
applicable to the Company

On the basis of our examination of records and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. -302082E

(CA. Aja
Membership No. 17643

Partner

Place of Signature: Kolkata KOLKATA
Dated: the 19™day of September, 2016



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.)

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of Even Date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Bharat Road Network Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bharat Road Network
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

KO ATA



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.)

To the Members of
Bharat Road Network Limited

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. -302082E

(cA. 1)
Membership 0.17643
Partner

KOLKaT
Place of Signature: Kolkata A

Dated: the 19™day of September , 2016



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

Note

EQUITY AND LIABITIES
Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share Capital 2
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) long-Term Borrowings 4
(b) Long-Term Provisions 5
Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowing 6
(b) Trade Payable

- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 7.1

- Due to Others 7.2
(c} Other Current Liabilities 8
{d) Short-Term Provisions 9
ASSETS
Non- Current Assets
{a) Fixed Assets

-Tangible Assets 10

- Intangible Assets 10
(b) Non-Current Investments 11
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12
(d) Long-Term Loans and Advances 13
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 14
Current Assets
{a) Trade Receivables 15
(b) Cashand Cash Equivalents 16
(c) Short-Term Loans and Advances 17
(d) Other Current Assets 18

Significant Accounting Paolicies 1
Other Disclosures 25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N0.302082E

Partner

Membership No.17643
Place : Kolkata

Date: 19th Sept, 2016

KOLKATA

As at
31st March, 2016
(Amount in X}

10,00,00,000
{26,89,027)

5,02,46,10,254
15,91,600

10,25,00,000

41,61,537
4,08,92,080
1,36,530
5,27,12,02,974

1,48,682
49,382
4,31,23,28,424

68,40,91,553
30,69,682

8,43,44,977
3,32,060
10,86,07,940
7,82,30,274
5,27,12,02,974

On behalf

Bajrang K Choudhary
Director

DIN : 00441872

Place : New Delhl
Date : 19th Sept, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015
(Amount in %)

10,00,00,000
(54,08,576)

94,19,10,000
20,71,650

2,82,56,99,453

1,02,38,010
4,75,72,856
1,08,930
3,92,21,92,323

29,549
59,599
3,81,87,46,186

1,16,62,340

6,05,26,709
62,72,065
3,28,150

3,92,21,92,323

of the Board of Directors

Brahm Dutt

Chairman

DIN : 05308908

Place : New Delhi
Date: 19t

Sanjay Banka

CFO & Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : 19th Sept, 2016
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BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

INCOME
Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Operational Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit Before Tax (I-11)

Tax Expense

Current Tax

Less; MAT Credit Entitlement

Net Current Tax

Income Tax in respect of Earlier Years
Profit After Tax for the year (1l - V)

Earnings per Equity share (in ¥) (Face Value ¥10/-):

a) Basic
b) Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies
Other Disclosures

Note

19

21
22
23
10
24

25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302082E

(CA Aja

Partner

Membership No.17643
Place : Kolkata

Date: 19th Sept, 2016

KOLKATA

25.4

Year ended
31st March, 2016
(Amount in X)

3,84,19,866
3,50,25,200

7,34,45,066

2,90,71,846
3,47,99,535
47,284
67,98,318

7,07,16,983

27,28,083

5,25,000
5,25,000

534

27,19,549

0.27
0.27

Year ended

31st March, 2015

(Amount in T)

10,43,26,741
3,28,767

10,46,55,508
5,00,20,674
2,90,22,630
99,79,941
51,734

1,38,56,920

10,29,31,899

17,23,609

3,30,000
3,30,000

18,970

17,04,639

0.17
0.17

On behalf of Board of Directors

Bajrang K Choudhary
Director

DIN : 00441872

Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

Brahm Dutt
Chairman

DIN : 05308908
Place : New Delhi

Date: 19th Sept, 2016

Logae

Sanjay Banka

CFO & Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi

Date: 19th Sept, 2016



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Particulars

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Finance Costs
Liability no longer required written back
Interest Income
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Increase/{Decrease) in Long Term Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/{Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase/{Decrease) in Short Term Provisions
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in Long Term Loans & Advances
Decrease/(Increase) in Short Term Loans & Advances
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets

Cash generated from Operating activities
Advance Income Tax {Net of refund)
Net Cash from Operating Activities
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets {including Intangible Assets)
Inter Corporate Deposits given
Increase in Investments
Sale of Investments
Advance against Warrant/OCPID
Interest received
Net Cash from Investing activities
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of long term borrowings
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) short term borrowings (net)
Interest paid
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {A+B+C)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes:

Year Ended
31st March, 2016
(%)

27,28,083

47,284
3,47,99,535
(4,205)
{3,50,20,995)
25,49,702
(4,80,050)
(60,72,268)
(31,46,300)
27,600
(2,38,18,268)

1,31,174
(22,98,299)

(3,31,06,709)
(1,12,47,747)
(4,43,54,456)

(1,56,200)
(10,84,10,964)
(2,71,81,000)

(66,11,90,000)
2,49,97,431
(77,19,40,733)

(39,63,68,883)
4,47,90,69,137
(2,72,31,99,453)
(54,91,45,617)
81,03,55,184

(59,40,005)
62,72,065
3,32,060

Year Ended
31st March, 2015
(%)

17,23,609

51,734
99,79,941

(3,28,767)
1,14,26,517
10,79,400
(70,94,159)
(1,73,59,855)
64,110
(1,37,04,643)
(3,30,000)
(2,16,150)
67,66,015

(1,93,68,765)
{51,84,956)
(2,45,53,721)
(62,700)

(1,18,09,12,500)
2,19,13,54,500

3,28,767
1,01,07,08,067

{2,74,39,40,000)
2,16,74,99,453

(98,05,70,877)
55,83,469

6,88,596
62,72,065

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 (AS 3} "Cash Flow

Statements".

2 Interest paid is inclusive of and Investments is exclusive of interest capitalised T 46,64,01,238/- (31st March 2015: T 39,53,67,388/-). Further,
Interest paid is inclusive of and unallocated borrowing costs shown under Other Non-Current Asset is exclusive of ¥ 3,069,682/- (31st March

2015: Nil).

Similarly, interest of ¥ 4,13,40,686/- (31st March 2015:Nil) earned on advances and adjusted with borrowing costs, has been included in

interest received to the extent realised during the year

3 During the year, Share/debenture application money given aggregating to ¥ Nil {31st March 2015: ¥ 5,50,00,000) have been converted into

investments in Equity Shares/debenture.

4 Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.

5 Cash and cash equivalents as at the Balance Sheet date consists of:

Balance with banks on current accounts

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302082E

CA

Par

Membership No 17643
Place : Kolkata

Date: 19th Sept, 2016

KOLKATA

Bajrang K
Director
DIN : 00441872
Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

As at
31st March, 2016
()
3,32,060
3,32,060

As at
31st March, 2015
()
62,72,065
62,72,065

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Brahm Dutt
Chairman

DIN : 05308308

Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

. &74 uﬁ""’“‘.&ﬁg/

Sanjay Banka

CFO & Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

N



b)

1.2

1.3

b)

Bharat Road Network b imited

Significant Accotnting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements ate prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention and the accrual
basis of accounting. The accounting policies applied by the Company are consistent with those applied in
the previous yeal except as oltherwise stated elsewhere.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in india (Indian GAAP). These Financial Statements have been prepared to comply in all
material respects with the Accounting Standards (‘AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, other pronouncements of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and relevant applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable.

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including Contingent Liabilities as of the
date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses for the reporting year.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates.

As per the Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, "an operating cycle is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents". For the company, there is
generally no clearly identifiable normal operating cycle and hence the normal operating cycle for the
company is assumed to have duration of 12 months.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company,
it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion hasis, taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation / Amortization

Fixed Assets are stated at Cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes taxes, duties, freight and incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the
assets.

Intangible Assets comprising of computer software and licenses expected to provide future enduring
economic benefits are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises of purchase price and directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
intended use. Any technology support cost or annual maintenance cost for such software is charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on Straight Line Method (‘SLM’) over the useful lives of the
respective fixed assets as specified in Part C of Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013:

Asset category Useful Life of the Asset
[ Assets for Own Use
i) Computers 3 - 6 years
i) Office Equipment 5 years



Bharat Rond Network Ehgited

Significant Accounting Policies {Contd )

d)

f)

1.4

1.6

b}

c)

1.7

1.8

Depreciation en assets acquired/sold during the vear is recognised in Statement of Profit and l1oss on
pro-rata basis from/till the date of purchase/sale,

Amortization of intangible assets is provided on SILM which reflect the managements estimate of usetul
life of such assets:

Asset category Useful Life
Assets for Own Use
i) Intangible Assets 6 years

Capital work in progress is stated at cost and includes development and other expenses including
interest during construction period.

Impairment of Fixed Assets

Wherever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of fixed assets may be
impaired, the Company subjects such assets to a test of recoverability, based on discounted cash flows
expected from use or disposal thereof. If the assets are impaired, the Company recognizes an
impairment loss as the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in
circumstances. However the carrying amount after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying
amount that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

Investments

lnvestment which are readily realizable and intended to be held not more than one year from the date
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All Other investments are
classified as long-term investment.

Current Investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined
on an individual investment basis. Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in
value, is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Cost includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fee, duties and borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment.

Fareign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the time of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting currency
at the exchange rate prevailing at Balance Sheet date. Any income or expense on account of exchange
difference either on settlement or on translation at the year end is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

Prior Period and Extra Ordinary Items
Prior Period and Extra Ordinary items having material impact on the financial affairs of the Company are
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b)

c)

1.11

1.12

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs to the extent attributed to the acquisition/construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use and all other borrowing costs
are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits based on expected obligation on undiscounted basis are recognised as
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which the related service is rendered.

Defined contribution plan
Company’s contribution towards Regional Provident Fund Authority and Employee State Insurance
Corporation are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan

Company’s liabilities towards gratuity and leave benefits are defined benefit plans. Such liabilities are
ascertained by an independent actuary as per the requirement of Accounting Standard — 15 (revised
2005) “Employee Benefits”.

All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
occur.

Segment Reporting

The company is primarily engaged in a single business segment of purchase, own, build, develop, design,
Operate, transfer road and related services. All the activities of the company revolved around the main
business. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting Standard -17 “Segment
Reporting”.

Taxes on Income
Tax expense comprises of current tax [(net of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement)] and
deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax reflects the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
for the current reporting year and reversal of timing differences of earlier re porting years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and these relate to
the taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future
taxable profits.

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises
unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised 2 v

»
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1.14

1.15

1.16

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that
the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the reporting year in which
the MAT credit hecomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the
recommendations contained in guidance note issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as
MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes
down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent Liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

Earnings per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Accounting
Standard-20, Earnings per Share notified by the Central Government under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit /
(loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the
net profit (loss) after tax for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transaction of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income and expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less which carry insignificant risk of changes in value.

A
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2 Shat¢ Capital

. As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015
Paiticulars
Number Number Amount ()
a) Authorised
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 1,00,09,000 10,00,00,600 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
10,00,00,000
b) 8 Paid
Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid up 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Total 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1 00,00,000

¢}  The rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of Equity shares are as under:
the Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. Dividend when declared is payable in Indian Rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d)  1he reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year has been shown in the table below:

As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015
Particulars No. of Equit
o- orEquity Amount (T)  No. of Equity Shares Amount ()
Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Shares issued during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 10.00,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
e)  Details of each shareholder holding mare than 5% shares :-
Name of Shareholder As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015
No. of Shares held % of Holding ~ No. of Shares held % of Holding
Srei Venture Capital Trust A/c-Infrastructure Project 99,50,000 99.50% 99,50,000 99.50%
Development Capital
3 Reserves and Surplus
{Amount in ¥})
As at As at

Particulars
“ 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Surplus/(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance (54,08,576) (71,13,215)

Add: Net Profit for the year 27,19,549 17,04,639
Total (26,89,027) (54,08,576)
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4 Long-Term Barrowings
{Amount in )
As al As at
31st March, 2016 331st March, 2015

Particulars

il Secured
term Loan frons financial institeetion 502,45, 10,25 94,19,10,000
Total 5,02,46,10,254 94,19,10,000
R Schedule as at 31st M 2016
i -
Particulars profile Total
Over 5 years 3-5Years 1-3Years 0-1 Years
Secured Term Loan
Term loan 1
Term Loan 2 22,68,00,000 11,34,00,000 34,02,00,000
Term Loan 3 39,09,40,000 19,54,70,000 58,64,10,000
Term Loan 4 37,33,33,333  18,66,66,667 56,00,00,000
Term Loan 5 1,49,88,49,254 1,149,88,49,254
Term Loan 6 1,50,00,00,000 1,50,00,00,000
Term Loan 7 53,91,51,000 53,91,51,000
3,92,89,40,254 79,56,03,333 30,00,66,667 5,02,46,10,254
at Schedule as at 31st 2015
Matu Profile Total
Over 5 3 -5 Years 1-3Years 0-1Years
Secured Tecm Loan
Term Loan 1 3,33,333 6,66,667 10,00,000
Term Loan 2 24,08,33,333 48,16,66,667 72,25,00,000
Term Loan 3 21,84,10,000 21,84,10,000
45,95,76,666 48,23,33,334 94,19,10,000

Nature of security for Secured borrowing:

Rupee term loan 1 is secured by way of first charge on all cash flow & al
of Attorney) of entire shareholding of the Company held by infrastru
Development Capital (IPDC) and demand promissory note covering the principal an

compounding on monthly rest @14% per annum. It has been repaid in full during the current reporting year.

Rupee term loans 2,3 & S are secured by way of first charge on all cash flow & all
Power of Attorney) of en

compounding on monthly rest @ SBR-4% per annum.

Rupee term loans 4 is to be secured by way of first charge on all cash flow & all moveable assets (both
power of Attorney) of entire shareholding of the Com
Development Capital (IPDC) and demand promissory note covering the principal an

compounding on monthly rest @ SBR-4% per annum.

Rupee term loans 6 & 7 are secured by way of first charge on all cash flo
power of Attorney) of entire shareholding of the Company held by Infrastri
note covering the principal and interest repayment. Interest is payable quarterly,

| moveable assets (both present & future), pledge (along with Power
cture Project Development Fund (IPDF) and Infrastiucture Project
d interest repayment. Interest is payable quarterly,

moveable assets (both present & future), pledge (along with
tire shareholding of the Company held by Infrastructure Project Development Fund {IPDF) and Infrastructure Project

Development Capital (IPDC) and demand promissory note covering the principal and interest repayment. Interest is payable quarterly,

present & future), pledge (along with
pany held by Infrastructure Project Development Fund (IPDF) and Infrastructure Project
d interest repayment. Interest is payable quarterly,

Ww & all moveable assets (both present & future), pledge (along with
ucture Project Development Capital (IPDC) and demand promissory
compounding on monthly rest @ SBR-4% per annum.
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5 Long-Term Provisions

Particulars

Provision for Erployee Bencht

As at
31st March, 2016

{(Amountin )
As at
31st March, 2015

-GOratuity 7,15,110 i1,38,180
Leave Encashment 7,86,810 8.16,180
-Sick Leave Avaiiment 89,680 1,172,250
Total 15,91,600 7
6  Short-Term Borrowings
(Amount in
. As at As at
Particulars

Secured
Loan Repayable on Demand - Bank Overdraft

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

1,11,06,99,453

Unsecured
inter Corporate Deposit {ICD) from others (refer note (i} below) 10,25,00,000 1,20,00,00,000
erm Loan from bodies corporate {refer note (ii) below) 51,50,00,000
Total 10,25,00,000 6

Terms of repayment of Secured Short-term borrowings:

Bank Overdraft of T Nil (As at 31st March 2015; ¥ 1,11,06,99,453) was to be secured by First Pari Passu Charge on Current Assets of the
Company and repayable on demand. Interest was payable monthly @ base rate + 1.35% per annum. It has been repaid in full during the
current reporting year.

Terms of repayment of Unsecured Short-term borrowings:
(i) Principal ICD amount of ¥ 10,25,00,000 (As at 31st March 2015 : T Nil) repayable as bullet payment at the end of one year. Interest is
payable on maturity @ 9% per annum.

Principal ICD amount of  Nil {As at 31st March 2015 : ¥ 95,00,00,000) was repayable on demand. Interest was payable annually @ 9% per
annum. It has beén repaid in full during the current reporting year.

Principal ICD amount of ¥ Nil {As at 31st March 2015 : ¥ 25,00,00,000) was repayable as bullet payment at the end of one year from the initial
drawdown date. Interest was payable on maturity @ 12% per annum. it has been repaid in full during the current reporting year.

(ii) Principal loan amount of T Nil (As at 31st March 2015 : ¥ 51,50,00,000) was repayable as bullet payment at the end of one year from the
initial drawdown date. Interest is payable monthly @ 10.5% per annum. It has been repaid in full during the current reporting year.
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Trade Payable
Due to Micto and Small Enteiprises

As at
31st March, 2016

Particulars

a) The ptincipa! amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid o any supplier

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day

¢) The amount of interest due and payahle for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day ) but without adding the interest
under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding yea

until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise,

the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Total
7.2 Due to Others
Particulars Asat
31st March, 2016
For services 41,61,537
Total 41,61,537
8  Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at

31st March, 2016

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,45,16,036
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Other Payables:
Book Overdraft 1,94,245
Liability for expenses 3,94,800
Salary & other payroll dues 9,01,160
Service Tax payable 26,19,400
TDS Payable 20,26,865
Provident Fund Payable 2,39,574
Professional Tax ble
Total 4,08,92,080
9  Short-Term Provisions
As at

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits

31st March, 2016

-Gratuity 3,780
-Leave Encashment 1,18,580
-Sick Leave Availment 14,170

Total 1,36,53C

maunt in
As at
31st March, 2015

ount in
As at
31st March, 2015

1,02,38,010

1,02,38,010

As at
31st March, 2015

3,55,99,337
24,51,175

4,04,724
15,80,229
37,66,186
36,16,105

1,54,900

200
4,75,72,856

in
As at
31st March, 2015

7,380
83,480
18,070

[ 1,08,930
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13

14

15

16

17

18

Deferred Tax Assets [Net)

Particulars

Components of Deleried Tax Lability
De

precaticn

Less : Delerced Tax Assots recopnised 1o the extent of lisbility

(Refer note 25.5)
Total

Long-Term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered

Particulars

Advance against Warrant/OCPID to related partics (Refer note 25.2)

Other Advances :

Advance Income Tax including Tax deducted at Source {Net of Provision

for Income Tax ¥ 10,32,000/- {Previous Year X 5,07,000/-)}

MAT Credit Entitlement

Total
Other Non-Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered
Particulars
Unallocated borrowing cost
Total

Trade Receivables
considered

Particulars

Debt outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date

Other Debts
Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

Cash and Cash Eq
Balances with scheduled banks
- In Current Accounts

Total

Short Term Loans and Advances
considered

Particulars

ICD givento parties
Other Advances :
Prepaid Expenses
Advances to staff
Advance to Vendor and others

note 25.2)

Total

Other Current Assets
red, considered

Particulars

Interest accrued and due on loans to others

Interest accrued but not due on loans to related parties (Re

Other receivables
Total

*

VYN AN

*

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2016
66,11,90,000

2,18,69,553
10,32,000
68,40,91,553

As at
31st March, 2016

30,69,682
30,69,682

As at
31st March, 2016
4,41,96,217
4,01,48,760
8,43,44,977

As at
31st March, 2016

3,32,060
3,32,060

As at
31st March, 2016
10,84,10,964

1,40,576
3,150
53,250
10,86,07,940

As at
31st March, 2016
2,45,41,107
5,13,64,250
23,24,917
7,82,30,274

{Amountin <)
As at
31st March, 2015

10,116

{10,116}

{Amountin )
As at
31st March, 2015

1,11,55,340
5,07,000
1,16,62,340

(Amountin
As at
31st March, 2015

ountin
As at
31st March, 2015
2,52,52,192
3,52,74,517
6,05,26,709

in
As at
31st March, 2015

62,72,065
62,72,065

Amount In
As at
31st March, 2015

23,150
3,05,000
3,28,150

{Amountin )
As at
31st March, 2015

2,45
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19 Revenue from Operations

Particulars

Sale of services:
Toll operations and maintenance
Project Management Consultancy

Total

20 Other Income

Particulars
Interest income

Less: Adjusted with corresponding Interest expenses

Liability no longer required written back

Total
21 Operational Expenses
Particulars
Toll Operating Expenses
Total
22 Employee Benefits Expense
Particulars

Salaries & Allowances
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

Total

23 Finance Costs

Particulars

Interest expenses on borrowings
Less: Capitalised to Investments (Refer note 25.8)

Total

Year ended
31st March, 2016

3,84,19,866

3,84,19,866

Year ended
31st March, 2016
7,63,61,681

4,13,40,686 3,50,20,995

4,205

3,50,25,200

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2016

2,77,89,350
11,86,629
95,867

2,90,71,846

Year ended
31st March, 2016

50,42,70,455

46,94,70,920

3,47,99,535

Amountin
Year ended
31st March, 2015

6,12,26,658
4,31,00,083

10,43,26,741

{Amount in )
Year ended
31st March, 2015

3,28,767

3,28,767

{Amount in )
Year ended
31st March, 2015

5,00,20,674

5,00,20,674

ount in
Year ended
31st March, 2015

2,76,45,948
12,45,886
1,30,796

2,90,22,630

ountin
Year ended
31st March, 2015

40,53,47,329

39,53,67,388

99,79,941
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24 Other Expenses
(Amount in T)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2016 315t March, 2015
Legal & Professional Fees 16,55,006 78,87,717
Travelling and Conveyance 34,79,311 45,08,244
Rates & Taxes 1,85,577 4,83,290
Repairs & Maintenance- Others 4,48,085 4,42,702
Postage, Telegram & Telephone 1,15,862 1,37,964
Demat charges 2,67,838
Sales Promotion 90,241 27,435
Insurance Premium 33,098 13,571
Payment to Auditor :
-Fer Audit 2,00,250 1,00,000
-Other Services 76,143 93,488
Director's Sitting Fees 1,05,000
Printing & Stationery 67,306 75,737
General Expenses 74,601 86,772
Total 67,98,318 1,38,56,920

K KATA
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25

25.1

S.No.

Other Disclosures
Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard (AS) 15
Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company provides Prevident Fund benefit to ail employees. Under this scheme fixed contiibution is made to the Regiona!
provident Fund Commissioner The Company has no legal and constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay employee benefits. The Company has made contributions of ¥ 11,08,140/- (315t March, 2015: ¥
11,45,748/-} to Regional Provident Fund Authority, which is recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and l oss

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Employees’ Gratuity scheme, Leave benefit scheme, and Sick Leave availment scheme are the Company’s defined benefil plans.
The present value of defined obligation and related current cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial
valuation being carried out at Balance Sheet date.

The following tables set out the details of amount recognized in the financial statements in respect of gratuity and leave benefits
which is not funded:

(Amount in %)

Particulars Unfunded Leave Benefit nfu
Defined benefit plans Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
actuarial valuation 31st 2016 3ist 2015 31st March, 2016 31st 2015

in Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) d

year

Present Value of DBO at beginning of the year 11,45,560 4,52,480 8,99,660 4,88,660
Current Service Cost 2,05,340 5,22,410 4,29,510 4,72,950
Interest cost 89,350 41,850 49,660 36,950

Curtailment cost / {credit)
Settlement cost / (credit)
Plan amendments

sitions

| Losses / {Gains) {7,21,360) 1,28,820 52,590 79,600
Benefits Paid (5,26,030) (1,78,500)
Employee contribution
Other Adjustments
Present Value of DBO at the end of the year 7,18,890 11,45,560 9,05,350 8,99,660

assets / (liability) recognised in Balance Sheet

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 7,18,890 11,45,560 9,05,390 8,99,660
Fair value of plan assets
Funded status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (7,18,890) (11,45,560) (9,05,390) (8,99,660)
Unrecognized past service cost
Net asset/ (liability} recognised in Balance Sheet (7,18,890) (11,45,560) {9,05,390) {8,99,660)
Current Asset / (Liability) (3,780} (7,380) (1,18,580) (83,480)

Non Current Asset / (Liability) (7,15,110) (11,38,180) (7,86,810) (8,16,180)
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S.No.

S.No

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)

Defined benefit plans Year ended
(As per actuarial valuation)

Components of Employer Expenses

Curnient Service cost 2,05,340

Interest cost 89,350

Expected return on plan assets

Curtailment cost / {credit)

Settlement cost / (credit)

Past service cost

Actuarial Losses / (Gains) (7,21,360)
expenses recognised in the Statement of

Profit 8 Loss (4,26,670)
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7
Expected return on plan assets N
Salary Escalation 10.00%
Mortality indian Assured

Lives (2006-08)

Year ended

315t March, 2016 31st March, 2015

5,22,410
41,850

1,28,820

6,93,080

7.80%
NA
10
Indian
Lives {2006 08)

Retirement/ Superannuation Age Employees: 60 yrs
Director : 65 yrs

The amounts for the current and previous years are as follows:

Particulars As at
31 March, 2016
Defined Benefit Obligation 7,18,890
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Deficit 7,18,890
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities - gain /
{loss) 7,21,360

Experience adjustments on plan assets - gain / (loss)

Actuarial  in/ due to on assumptions

(Amount in )

privilege Leave Benefit (Unfunded)

Year ended
31st March, 2016

4,29,510
49,660

52,590

5,31,760

7.80%
NA
10.
Indian Assured
Lives (2006-08)

Year ended
31st March, 2015

4,72,950
36,950

79,600

5,89,500

NA
10.00%

Indian Assured
Lives

Employees: 60 yrs
Director : 65 yrs

Gratuity
As at As at
31 Mar 2015 31 March, 2014
11,45,560 4,52,480
11,45,560 4,52,480
35,340 3,10,290
1,64, 58,270

(Amount in %)

31

As at
2013
3,52,830

3,52,830



(Amount in )

Leave
S.No Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015 31 March, 2014 31 Match, 2013

1 Defined Eenefi gation 05,380 £.69,660 1,88, 9,537,530
7 Fah Vilue of Plan Assels

3 Deficit 4,0%,38C 8,494,660 1,8%,660 9,37,530

srience adjustments on plan liabilities - gain /
4 (52,590} 28,730 {53,710) (8,60,950)
5  Experience adjustments on plan assets  gain / {loss)
Actuarial gain  loss) due to change on assumptions 330) 53,600

Figures pertaining to period prior to 31 March, 2013 have not been disclosed as FY 2012-13 was the first year of actuaria! valuation.

(Amount in )
Sick Leave Benefit
S.No Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015

Assets/ Liabilities

1 Defined Benefit Obligation 1,03,850 1,35,360
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets
3 Current Asset / (Liability) (14,170) (18,070)
4 Non Current Asset / (Liability) (89,680) (1,17,290)
Actuarial Assumptions
1 Discount Rate 7.80% 7.80%
2 Expected return on plan assets NA NA
3 Salary Escalation 10.00% 10.00%
4 Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives (2006-08) Lives (2006-08)
S Retirement/ Superannuation Age Employees: 60 yrs
Director : 65 yrs
VI Other disclosures :
Basis of estimates of Rate of escalation in salary :
a) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.
b) The Gratuity and Leave Encashment have been recognised under " Salaries and allowances" under Note No.22.

<) The expected contribution for defined benefit plan for the next financial year is not available and hence not disclosed.
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25 Otherdisclosures {Contd.)
252 HRelated Party Transactions

(I} Related Parties:

SI.No Country of Origin

A Investor having cantrol

Infrastructure Project Development Capital Iridid
B Subsidiary
Solapur Tollways Pvt. Ltd. India
C  Associates
Orissa Steel Expressway Pvt. [td. India
Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. [ td. India
Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway Pvt Ltd. india
Shree Jagannath Expressways Pvt. Ltd. India
Potin - Pangin | lighway Pvt. Ltd. India
Guruvyoor [nfrastructure Pvt Ltd. India
D Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Asim Tewari (CEO & Manager upto 30th June, 2015 & Chief Technical Officer w.e.f. 1st July, 2015) India
Anurag Kuba (CEO w.e.f. 29th June, 2015 and Upto 16th June, 2016) India
lok Nagpal {CFO upto 7th July, 2015) India
Banka (CFO & Company Secretary w.e.f 17th December, 2015) India
Lahiri (Company Secretary upto 31st August, 2015) India
E of KMP
Roli Tewari (Wife of Asim Tewari) India
Sonia Nagpal (Wife of Alok Nagpal) India

The transactions with related parties have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those on normal
commercial terms.

No amount has been written back / written off during the year in respect of due to / from related parties, The amount due from
related parties are good and hence no provision for doubtful debts in respect thereof is required.

(1) Summary of Transactions with Related Parties
(Amount in %)

Name of the related party Nature of Transaction & Outstanding Balances 2015-16 2014-15

(A) Investor having Control
Purchase of Equity Shares of

Infrastructure Project Development Capital
! P P - Ghaziabad Aligarh Ex put. Ltd 50,

S
nsactions :
inter Corporate Deposit taken/(refunded)

Inter Corporate Deposit given 1,50,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit refund received 1,50,00,000

Interest Expenses on ICD taken 1,38,51,013

Interest Income on ICD given 3,28,767

Solapur Tollways Pvt. Ltd Income from Project Management Consultancy 3,09,19,866 2,00,00,000

(Excluding Service Tax)
Balance due:
Cost of Investment pledged as collateral for loan 37,09,162 64,17,103
ken from bank
e Receivable (incl service tax) 6,12,55,260 4,09,44,000
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{1 Sununary of Transactions with Related Partics

Name of the related panty

{C) Associates

Orissa Steel Expressway Pvt Ltd

Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. Ltd.

Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway Pvt. Ltd

Potin - Pangin Highway Pvt. Ltd.

Shree Jagannath Expressways Pvt Ltd

Guruvyoor Infrastructure Pvt, Ltd

" Nature of Transaction & Cutslanding Balances ;

Transactions :

Inte: Corparale Deposit given

Inter Corporate Deposit refund reccived
Interest Income an ICD given

Income from Project Management Consuitancy

Balance due:

Inter Corporate Deposit Balance

Cost of Investment pledged as collateral for loan
taken from bank

Interest Accrued but not due

Trade Receivable (incl service tax)

Transactions :

Advance against Unsecured Participatory
Convertible Debenture

Unsecured Participatory Convertible Debenture
alloted against application money

Batance due:

Advance against Unsecured Participatory
Convertible Debenture

Cost of Investment pledged as collateral for loan
taken from bank

Transactions :

Inter Corporate deposit given

Interest Income on ICD given

Balance due:

Inter Corporate deposit

Interest Accrued but not due

Cost of Investment pledged as collateral for loan
taken from bank

Balance due:

Unsecured Participatory Optionally Convertible
Debenture

Cost of Investment pledged as collateral for loan
taken from bank

Transactions :

Advance against Warrant/OCPID

Interest income on the Advance against
Warrant/OCPID

Balance due:

Advance against Warrant/OCPID

Interest Accrued but not due

Cost of Investment pledged as collateral for loan
taken from bank

Balance due:

Trade receivable

Cost of Investment pledged as collateral for loan
taken from bank

2015 16

20,00,000
27,06,32,239

1,14,885
1, 72,000

13,84,50,000

13,84,90,000

51,19,40,019
10,64,10,964

23,04,080
10,64,10,964

23,04,080
71,85,08,676

2,75,89,255

73,664

52,27,00,000
5,43,83,650

52,27,00,000
4,89,45,285
47,12,26,007

24,47,197
71,11,60,621

(Anountin &3

2014-15

2,00,00,6CGC

24,11,80,445

1,04,72,000

5,50,00,000

82,50,06,054

64,03,02,169

2,45,93,600

65,646

13,59,45,727

63,37,53,917
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25.3

25.4

{1} summary of Transactions with Related Partics (continued)

(D) Key Management Personnel
‘ y per upto 3uth

A lewart (1O 4

Salary & Allowonies

cab Officer w et

(Amount in

CLOwef 2Sth June, 2015 Salarv & Allowances 1,06,15,431 N4
and upto 16thJune, 2016}
Alok Nagpal (CFO upto 7th July, 2015 Salary & Allowances 21 72,73,429
Sanjay Banka (CFC & Company Secretary Salary & Allowances 25,81,363 NA
w.e f 17th Decamber, 2015)
Samita Lahiri (Company Secretary upto 31st Salary & Allowances 5,595,898 17,30,842
August, 2015)
(F) Relatives of KMP
Rali Tewari Car llire Cha 3,00,000
Sonia Nagpal Car Hire Charges 3,00,000
Contingent liabilities
in%)
particulacs Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
- Income Tax ( F.Y. 2012-13}) 23,10,000

Under scrutiny assessment for the financial year 2012-13, Ld. DCIT had made disallowance u/s 14A and determined total income
under normal provision of the Act at Rs.69,14,530/- by his ordet u/s 143(3} as against returned income of Rs 13,22,710/ .

The Company has preferred an appeal to CIT (A) against the above order on the facts that the order u/s 143(3) is grossly unjustified,
erroneous and unsustainable.

The amounts shown above represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties
and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of legal processes which have been invoked by the Company and
therefore cannot be estimated accurately. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above contingent
liabilities.

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered necessary for the dispute mentioned above on the ground that there

are fair chances of successful outcome of the appeal.

Earnings per Share

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Baslc and Diluted Earnings per Share

Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders {in ) 27,19,549 17,04,639

Weighted average number of Equity Shares Basic (Nos.) 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

Weighted average number of Potential Equity Shares (Nos.)

Weighted average number of Equity Shares Diluted (Nos.) 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

Nominal Value of Equity per share (3) 10 10

Basic Earnings per share (%) 0.27 0.17

Diluted Earnings per share () 0.27 0.17

25.5 The Deferred Tax Asset {net) of T 9,11,579/- (31 March 2015 : ¥ 17,13,675/-) arising out of timing difference as on 31 March, 2016 is

on account of the following:

(Amount in 3)

As at As at
Particulars 31st 2016 2015
Components of Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability}:
Carry forward Losses 7,18,970 13,69,813
Provision for Gratuity 2,22,137 3,563,978
D reciation (10,116)
et 1

Note: On the basis of prudence, deferred tax asset has been recogni
liability

books of Accounts to the extent of deferred tax
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25.6

25.7

25.8

25.9

25.10

The Company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filed by suppliers with the notified authority under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006) claiming their status as on 31st March, 2016 as micro, small or medium
enterprise. Consequently the amount paid / payable to these parties during the year is nil {As at 31st March 2015: Nil).

Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in a single business segment of own, build, develop, design, operate, transfer road and related
services. All the activities of the Company revolve around the main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments as
per Accounting Standard -17 “Segment Reporting” notified by the Central Government under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006.

The Company is presently engaged in the business of designing, building, operating, maintaining and carrying out all other activities
pertaining to road projects. As per the guidelines of respective Government Authority and the requirements of the Concession
Agreements, such road projects are required to be implemented under the Built, Operate & Transfer (BOT) model by creating Special
Purpose Vehicles {(SPVs) so that after the concession period, the SPV can be transferred to the respective authority on an “as is where
is basis”. The Company has, therefore, invested in various road projects under the aforesaid SPV model

These investments have been made on a long term basis with an objective to obtain return and capital appreciation after the
commencement of commercial operations of the respective Project.

Based on a legal opinion, the Company has treated these investments as “Qualifying Asset”. As required by Accounting Standard 16
on ‘Borrowings Costs’, Accounting Standard 13 on ‘Investments’ and in accordance with the accounting concept of ‘Matching costs
and revenues’, the Company has capitalised borrowing cost incurred on funds borrowed exclusively for investments in SPVs as part of
the cost of investments.

Accordingly, Non-Current Investments and Other Non-Current Assets includes borrowing cost of I 120,00,20,254/- including ¥
46,64,01,238/- for the year (As at 31st March 2015: ¥ 73,36,19,016/- including ¥ 32,28,03,982/- for that year) and ¥ 3,069,682/-
including T 3,069,682/- for the year (As at 31st March 2015 : ¥ Nil) respectively incurred on loans borrowed for acquisition of these
investments.

Earnings / Expenses in Foreign Currency - X Nil (Previous Year - T Nil)

The previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts and other
disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in
relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

As per our report annexed

For G. P, Agrawal & Co. On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302082E

w

(CA Bajrang K Choudhary Brahm Dutt
Partner Director Chairman
Membership No.17643 DIN : 00441872 DIN : 05308908
Place : Kolkata Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016 Date : 19th Sept, 2016 Date: 19th Sept, 2016

Sanjay Banka
CFO & Company Secretary
Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016
KOLKATA
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To The Members ofBharat Road Network Limited

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bharat Road Network
Limited(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary Companies (the
Holding Company and its subsidiary Companies together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”) for the year then ended.

Management’s responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act/other relevant regulations
applicable, for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit.

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditor in terms of their reports referred to in sun-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2016, and their
consolidated loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 25.6 to the financial statements regarding investment by the Holding
Company in Special Purpose Vehicles formed as per Concession Agreement and guidelines of
respective Government authority and treatment of such investments as Qualifying Asset which is
based on a legal opinion and capitalization of directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in
respect thereof. Our opinion is neither a reservation, nor a qualification or an adverse remark in
respect of this matter.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of one subsidiary, whose
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 3,91,11,46,219/- as at 31st March, 2016, total
revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 14,37,25,277/- for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs.41,48,00,437/- for the
year ended 31st March, 2016, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in
respect of five associates, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management of the Holding Company and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiary and associates, and our report in terms of sub-
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(b)

sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit / loss of Rs.
45,510/- for the year ended 31st March, 2016, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements / financial information
have not been audited by us. These financial statements / financial information are
unaudited, have been certified by the management of that entity and furnished to us by the
Management of the Holding Company and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of that
associate, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and {11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements / financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management of the Holding Company, these unaudited
financial statements / financial information are not material to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on the Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors and the unaudited financial
statements / financial information certified by the management of that entity.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and based on
the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company, subsidiary company and
associate Companies, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportto the extent applicable,that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of the other auditor.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

KOL TA
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vi.

vii

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as at 31st March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company and Associate
Companies, none of the directors of the group companies is disqualified as at 31 March,
2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure A”, which is based on the Auditors’ Reports of the Company and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Group and its associates; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements as of March
31, 2016 — Refer Note No. 25.2 to the consolidated financial statements.

b. The Group has made provisions in its consolidated financial statements, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses on
long term contracts including derivative contracts.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding company, its Subsidiary Company and
Associate Companies.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(cA

Partner

Membership No. 17643

Place of Signature: Kolkata KOLKATA
Date: 19th day of September, 2016
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Bharat Road Network Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as of
and for the year ended 31st March, 2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Group and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Group and its associates are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)
To The Members of Bharat Road Network Limited

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of his report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2016,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)
To The Members ofBharat Road Network Limited

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to one subsidiary and 6
associates, which is company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the
auditor of such companies incorporated in India.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Aj

Partner

Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata

Date: 19th day of September, 2016 KOLKATA



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

Minority Interest

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings
(b) Long-Term Provisions

Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables

- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

- Due to Others
{¢) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-Term Provisions

Il. ASSETS
Non- Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
-Tangible Assets
-Intangible Assets

-Intangible Assets under Development

{b) Goodwill on Consolidation

{c) Non-Current Investments

(d) Long-Term Loans and Advances
{e) Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

(a) Trade receivables

{b) Cash and Bank Balances

(c) Short-Term Loans and Advances
(d) Other Current Assets

Significant Accounting Policies
Other Disclosure

Notes

7.1
7.2

10
10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17
18

1
25

As at
31st March, 2016
{Amount in %)

10,00,00,000
(75,29,26,775)

8,72,72,10,254
24,34,001

12,75,00,000

41,61,537
17,37,50,621
1,36,530
8,38,22,66,168

12,83,655
49,382
3,04,16,33,922
1,74,79,924
3,60,72,69,369
1,06,19,76,400
30,69,682

2,30,89,717
18,07,10,412
36,74,73,431
7,82,30,274

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolldated Financial Statements.
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to In our report of even date.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302082E

Membership No.17643
Place : Kolkata
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

KOLKAT

As at
31st March, 2015
(Amaunt in )

10,00,00,000
(30,91,90,681)

2,80,43,10,000
23,77,378

2,86,56,99,453

1,02,38,010
54,73,62,315
1,08,930
5,02,09,05,405

7,51,772
59,599
1,61,76,98,845
1,66,96,138
3,52,92,71,352
72,19,08,108

1,95,82,709
8,82,84,486
3,28,150
2,63,23,246
6,02,09,05,405

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Baj K Choudhary
Director

DIN : 00441872

Place : New Delhl
Date : 19th Sept, 2016

Brahm Dutt

Chairman

DIN : 05308908

Place : New Delhi

Date : 19th Sept, 2016

Sanjay Banka

CFO & Company Secretary
Place : New Delhi

Date : 19th Sept, 2016



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

INCOME

Revenue from QOperations
Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Operational Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit Before Tax
Tax Expense
Current Tax
Less: MAT CredIt Entitlement
Net Current Tax
Income Tax in Respect of Earlier Years
Profit/(Loss) After Tax but before share in results of Associates
and Minority interest
Share of Loss of Associates
Profit for the year

Earnings per Equity share (in T} (Face Value T 10/-):
a) Basic
b) Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies
Other Disclosure

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Notes

19
20

21
22
23
10
24

254

1
25

Year ended
31st March, 2016

(Amount in T)

75,00,000
3,50,25,200
4,25,25,200

2,90,71,846
3,47,99,535
47,284
75,33,658
7,14,52,323

(2,89,27,123)

5,25,000
5,25,000

8,534
(2,89,35,657)

(41,48,00,437)

(44.37)
(44.37)

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302082E

(ca

Part

Membership No.17643
Place : Kolkata

Date: 19th Sept, 2016

KOLKATA

Bajrang
Director
DIN : 00441872
Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2015

{Amount in %)
8,43,26,741

8,43,26,741

5,00,20,674
2,90,22,630
99,79,941
51,734
1,42,52,527
10,33,27,506

(1,90,00,765)

3,30,000
3,30,000

18,970
{1,90,19,735}

(19,34,02,886)

(21.24)
(21.24)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Brahm Dutt

Chairman

DIN : 05308908

Place : New Delhi
Date : 19th Sept, 2016

Sanjay Banka

CFO & Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : 19th Sept, 2016



Consolldated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Cash Flow from Operating Activitles

Net Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Share of Loss of Associates

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest Income

Liability no longer required written back

Finance costs

Operating Profit before WorkIng Capltal Changes
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables
Decrease/{Increase) in Long Term Loans & Advances
Decrease/(Increase) in Short Term Loans & Advances
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets

Cash generated from Operating actlvitles

Advance Income Tax (Net of refund)

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Actlvities
Decrease/({Increase) in Intangible Assets under Development
Purchase of Fixed Assets (including Intangible Assets)
Inter Corporate Deposits given

Increase in Investments

Sale of Investments

Advance against Warrant/OCPID given

Interest received

Decrease/(Increase) in fixed deposite with banks

Net Cash from Investing actlvities

Cash Flow from Financing Actlvitles
Increase/(Decrease) in Goodwill

Repayment of long term borrowings

Proceeds from long term borrowings
Increase/(Decrease) of short term borrowings (net)
Interest paid

Net Cash Flow from FInancing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {A+B+C)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer note no. 16)

Notes:

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 (AS 3) "'Cash Flow Statements"

BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED

Year Ended
31 March, 2016
(%)

(44,37,36,094)

41,48,00,437
47,284
(3,50,20,995)
(4,205)
3,47,99,535
(2,51,14,038)
56,623
(60,72,268)
(37,00,77,221)
27,600
(35,07,008)
33,24,29,311
(25,87,34,317)
(16,40,925)
(33,66,32,243)
(1,13,06,603)
(34,79,38,846)

(1,42,74,99,565)
(8,65,094)
(10,84,10,964)
(2,71,81,000)

(66,11,90,000)
2,99,56,211
4,53,59,345

(2,14,98,31,067)

(39,63,68,883)
6,31,92,69,137
(2,73,81,99,453)

(54,91,45,617)
2,63,55,55,184
13,77,85,271
4,29,25,141
18,07,10,412

Year Ended
31 March, 2015
()

(21,24,22,621)

19,34,02,886
51,734

99,79,941
{89,88,060)
13,20,220
(70,94,159)
12,12,54,907
{15,890)
67,67,357
(45,53,46,264)
(1,89,408)
2,77,18,405
(31,45,72,893)
(80,72,107)
(32,26,45,000)

(1,00,49,25,933)
(5,98,041)

{99,80,61,723)
2,19,13,54,500

19,00,56,655
37,78,25,458

(90,11,05,994)
(3,91,81,40,000)
2,11,24,00,000
2,86,56,99,453
(45,68,38,276)
(29,79,84,817)
(24,28,04,359)
28,57,29,500
4,29,25,141

2 Interest paid is inclusive of and Investments is exclusive of interest capitalised¥ 46,64,01,238/- (31st March 2015: ¥ 39,53,67,388/-). Further, Interest paid is inclusive of and

w

L9 B

unallocated borrowing costs shown under Other Non-Current Asset is exclusive of ¥ 3,069,682/- (31st March 2015: Nil).

Similarly, interest of ¥ 4,13,40,686/- (31st March 2015:Nil) earned on advances and adjusted with borrowing costs, has been included in interest received to the extent

realised during the year.

During the year, Share/debenture application money given aggregating toZ Nil (31st March 2015: ¥ 5,50,00,000) have been converted into investments in Equity

Shares/debenture.

Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.

Cash and cash equivalents as at the Balance Sheet date consists of:

Cash on Hand
Balances with scheduled banks - In Current Accounts
Invesment in Liquid Mutual Fund

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302082E

(cA
Membership No.17643

Place : Kolkata
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

KOLKATA

As at
31st March, 2016
(%)
62,986
7,90,67,257
10,15,80,169
18,07,10,412

As at
31st March, 2015
(%)
57,477
4,27,11,452
1,56,212
4,29,25,141

On behalf of the Board of Directors

ngK oud
Director
DIN : 00441872
Place : New Delhi

Brahm Dutt
Chairman

DIN : 05308908
Place : New Delhi

Date : 19th Sept, 2016 Date:

CFO & Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi

Date : 19th Sept, 2016



Bliarat Road Network Linited

1.1

a)

b)

c)

d)

1.2

b)

c)

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention
and the accrual basis of accounting.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP). These Financial Statements have been prepared to comply
in all material respects with the Accounting Standards (‘AS') specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, other pronouncements
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and relevant applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956, and Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including Contingent Liabilities
as of the date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses for the reporting year.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates.

As per the Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, "an operating cycle is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents". For the Group, there is
generally no clearly identifiable normal operating cycle and hence the normal operating cycle is
assumed to have duration of 12 months.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements related to Bharat Road Network Limited (the Holding Company)
and its Subsidiary and associates. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to
as ‘the Group’. The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Accounting Standard 21 (AS-21) “Consolidated Financial Statements” and Accounting Standard 23
(AS-23) “Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements” notified by the
Central Government under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company have been combined on
line by line basis by adding together the book value of like items of Assets, Liabilities, Income and
Expenses after eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised
profits or losses.

In case of investments in subsidiaries, where the shareholding is less than 100%, minority interest in the

net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consist of:

i) The amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date on which Investment in the
subsidiary is made.

ii) The minorities’ share of movements in equity since the date the holding subsidiary relationship
came into existence.

Uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances have been

adopted and presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Holding Company’s separate

financial statements.



Bharat Road Network Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

13

1.4

b)

c)

d) The excess of cost of the Holding Company of its investment in the subsidiary over the Holding

f)

Company’s portion of equity of the subsidiary as at the date of investment is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as Goodwill. It is tested for impairment on a periodic basis and
written-off if found impaired.

The excess of Holding Company’s portion of equity of the subsidiary over cost as at the date of
investment, is treated as Capital Reserve.

Investment in associate is accounted using the equity method and disclosed separately in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, it
can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

a) Income from Dividend of shares of corporate bodies is accounted when the right to receive the
dividend is established.

b) All other income is accounted for on accrual basis.

Fixed Assets

Tangible Asset:
Fixed Assets are stated at Cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and
incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the assets.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets comprising of computer software and licenses expected to provide future enduring
economic benefits are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises of purchase price and directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
intended use. Any technology support cost or annual maintenance cost for such software is charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets under Development

Project Highways representing Toll Collection Rights are obtained in consideration for construction,
operation and maintenance of the project on Design, Bulld, Operate and Transfer basis. All Project
related expenditure for acquisition of Toll collection rights viz,, civil works, machinery under erection,
construction and erection materials, pre-operative expenditure, expenditure indirectly related to the
project and incidental to setting up project facilities, borrowing cost incurred prior to the date of
commercial operation, and trial run expenditure are shown under Intangible Assets under development.
These expenses are net of recoveries, claims and income (net of tax), if any, from surplus funds arising
out of project specific borrowings.



Bharat Road Network Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

1.5 Depreciation and amortization

a)

b)

d)

e)

1.6

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on Straight Line Method (‘SLM’), which reflects the
management’s estimate of the useful lives of the respective fixed assets. Pursuant to the enactment of
the Companies Act 2013, the Group has, effective 1st April 2014, reviewed and revised the useful life of
its respective fixed assets and such useful life are equal to the corresponding useful life prescribed in
Part C of Schedule Il to Companies Act 2013:

Asset category Useful Life of the Asset

Assets for Own Use

Com ters 3, 6 years
i) Furniture & Fixtures 10 ars

Plant & Machinery 15 ars
iv) Office 5 ars

Toll collection rights in respect of road projects are amortized over the period of concession using the
revenue based amortization method in the manner prescribed under Schedule Il to the companies Act,
2013. Under the revenue based method, amortization is provided based on the proportion of actual
revenue earned till the end of the year to the total projected revenue from the intangible asset
expected to be earned over the concession period. Total projected revenue is reviewed at the end of
each financial year and is adjusted to reflect the changes in earlier estimate vis-a-vis the actual revenue
earned till the end of the year so that the whole of the cost of the intangible assets is amortized over the
concession period.

Amortization of intangible assets such as Specialized software are provided on SLM which reflect the
management’s estimate of useful life of such assets:

| Assets for Own Use
i) Intangible Assets 6 years

Fixed Assets costing up to INR 5000/- are depreciated fully over a period of 12 months from the date of
purchase.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on
pro-rata basis from/till the date of purchase/sale.

Impairment of Fixed Assets

Wherever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of fixed assets may be
impaired, the Group subjects such assets to a test of recoverability, based on discounted cash flows
expected from use or disposal thereof. If the assets are impaired, the Group recognizes an impairment
loss as the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life



Bharat Road Network Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

1.7

1.8

b)

c)

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

b)

A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in
circumstances. However, the carrying amount after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying
amount that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost and includes development and other expenses including
interest during construction period. '

Investments

Investment which are readily realizable and intended to be held not more than one year from the date
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All Other investments are
classified as long-term investment.

Current Investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined
on an individual investment basis. Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in
value, is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Cost includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fee, duties and borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreigh currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the time of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting currency
at the exchange rate prevailing at Balance Sheet date. Any income or expense on account of exchange
difference either on settlement or on translation at the year end is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Prior Period and Extra Ordinary ltems

Prior Period and Extra Ordinary items having material impact on the financial affairs of the Group are
disclosed separately.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs to the extent attributed to the acquisition/construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use and all other borrowing costs
are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits based on expected obligation on undiscounted basis are recognised as
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which the related service is rendered.

Defined contribution plan
Group’s contribution towards Regional Provident Fund Authority and Employee State Insurance
Corporation are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.



Bharat Road Network Eimited

Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.}

c)

1.13

1.14

a)

1.15

1.16

Defined benefit plan

Group’s liabilities towards gratuity and leave benefits are defined benefit plans. Such liabilities are
ascertained by an independent actuary as per the requirement of Accounting Standard — 15 {revised
2005) “Employee Benefits”.

All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
occur.

Segment Reporting

The Group is primarily engaged in a single business segment of purchase, own, build, develop, design,
Operate, transfer road and related services. All the activities of the Group revolved around the main
business. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting Standard -17 “Segment
Reporting”.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the provisians of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences which is the differences between the taxable income
and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets subject to the consideration of prudence are recognised and carried forward only to
the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

In situations where the Group has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax
assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be
realised against future taxable profits.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent Liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

Earnings per Share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard-
20, Earnings per Share notified by the Central Government under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006. Basic earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit / (loss) after tax
for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit
(loss) after tax for the year by the welghted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.



Bharat Road Network Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

1.17

1.18

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cheques on hand and balance of bank on current
accounts.

Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferral or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

2 Share Capital

As at 31st March, 2016

Particulars
Amount ( I)
a) Authorised
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
10,00,00,000
b)
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Total 10,00,00,000

¢}  The rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of Equity shares are as under:

As at 31st Marc 2015
Number Amount (%)
1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
10,00,00,000
1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. Dividend when declared is payable in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders
of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d)  The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year has been shown in the table below

As at 31st March, 2016
Particulars No. of Equity Amount (3)
Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Shares issued during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the r 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
e)  Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares :-

As at 31st March, 2016
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding

held

99,50,000 99.50%

3 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

surplus/(deflcit) in the Statement of Prafit and Loss
ning Balance
Net
Total

for the r

As at 31st March, 2015
No. of Equity Amount (I)
Shares
1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

As at 31st March, 2015

No. of Shares % of Holding
held
99,50,000 99.50%
{Amount InX)
As at As at

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

(30,91,90,681)
(44,37,36,094)
(75,29,26,775)

(9,67,68,060)
(21,24,22,621)
(30,91,90,681)



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

4 Long-Term Borrowings

Particulars

Term Loan from Banks
Term Loan from financial Institutions

ii) Unsecured
Bond / Debentures (Un-quoted)

Optionally Convertible Participative Interest bearing Debentures (OCPID)

Others
Sponsor’s Fund

Total

Long-Term Provislons

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits
-Gratuity

-Leave Encashment

-Sick Leave Availment

Total

Short-Term Borrowings

Particulars

Secured
Loan Repayable on Demand - Bank Overdraft

Unsecured

Inter Corporate Deposit from related party (refer note 25.3)
Inter Corporate Deposit from others

Term Loan from Body Corporate

Total

As at
31st 2016

1,38,52,00,000
5,02,46,10,254

65,82,00,000

1,65,92,00,000

8,72,72,10,254

As at
31st March, 2016

11,70,070
11,74,251

89,680
24,34,001

As at
31st March, 2016

12,75,00,000

12,75,00,000

As at
31st March, 2015

94,19,10,000

65,82,00,000
1,20,42,00,000

2,80,43,10,000

in
As at
31st March, 2015

12,26,467
10,33,621

1,17,290
23,77,378

ntin
As at
31st March, 2015

1,11,06,99,453
4,00,00,000
1,20,00,00,000

51,50,00,000

2,86,56,99,453



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

7.1

7.2

9

Trade Payable
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

. As at
particulars

Amount in
As at

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

a) The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day.

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day ) but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
year until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Total
Due to Others
Particulars As at
31st March, 2016
For services 41,61,537
Total 41,61,537
Other Current Liahilities
As at
rticulars
@ 315t March, 2016
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,45,16,036
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Other Payables:
Creditors for capital expenses
Retention money payable 8,35,78,986
Book Overdraft 1,94,245
Liability for expenses 3,20,76,102
& other payroll dues 29,37,092
ry 2,04,48,160
Tota 17,37,50,621
Short-Term Provisions
As at
Particul
artieutars 31st March, 2016
Provision for Employee Beneflts
ratuity 3,780
ve Encashment 1,18,580
ick Leave Availment 14,170
Total 1,36,530

(Amount in
As at
31st March, 2015

1,02,38,010

1,02,38,010

in
As at
31st March, 2015

3,55,99,337
24,51,175

38,94,05,787
8,37,46,911

45,03,833
21,46,045
2,95,09,227
54,73,62,315

ntin
As at
31st March, 2015

7,380
83,480
18,070

1,08,930



TLETT'8
665'6S
66564
TULLTS'L

£ST65T

6EVBTE

SI0BY'T

STOZ'€0'TE

e sy

¥20]4 1N
Ul junowly)

LEO'EE'ET
8¢'6Y

I3E'6Y

§59°€8'ZL
11678
RLSIYT
9E6° L8y

946'78T
059717

S107°€0 1€
e sy

9T0Z'E0°1E
lesy

42019 18N

(2 wunowy)

‘e

S80°08'€

TOT'E
T0T'E

p86'9L'E
ire
86S'€TT
0087
SPeC9T

STOT'E0°'TE

je sy

196569
8TE'ET

STEET

| €v3°28°9

ST
10081
S04'€¥'T
008'L
9£6'69°C

9TQTE0'TE

lesy

1e3A
a3y} Suunp
syusunsnipe
/s3[es
uonesiowy

[43-WX4

zSS°'LT

265'1T

1EaA
ay3 Suunp
Kquaunsnipe
/s3les

92075

TOT'E
0T

S26'0SC
59YV'SL
8EY'T8

8T0€6

1e3A 241 104

STY'EV'E
L1701

LT20T
TTTee’e
STt
9/3'0L
£01°02'T

EVTSET

1e3A 3y} Joj

6509Z'T

650'97'T
7L8'eT
09T'1Y
008'T
£77'69

0T’ v0'T0
esy

S80°08°E
T0T'E

T0T'e

V86'9L'E

TYE'6S
86G°€T'T
0081
SYT'T9T

STOT'V0'T0
jesy

105 J0U sBM FLUES BY1 40 10edW] By} UIAIMOH £TOT IV Salueduio) 3yl 01 |} 3NPayas 30 3u

UELG0AABP JapUn SIISSE 3jqI3ueluy, s3pun pasyeyded uaaq sey (262207 2 © 1B3A snolAdld) Y1962 2

9St T6'TT

00L°29
00L79

95£'8Z°TT
SES'VY'E
160°2L'Y
008’1
¥97'0T‘E

STOT'E0'TE
w sy

866'87°0Z
00£29

00L29

86Z299'6T
005'68
565407
9'TE'L
008'T
TT6'72S
058'7Te

9T0T'E0°'TE
e sy

aitaainbas 3yl 133w of paudyje sem 1834 snoiaaad a3 1oy uonenaldad (q

JBaA BU) 40} SSO7 pUB JoId 01 padieyd ua3q sey (PELTS T JEDA SNOIADIG) N TAIAY

si2'6v"9
00429
00429
SLO'LB'S
SLEVLT
00£'68°C
000°€CT
ie9A
ay1 Suunp JeaA sy
syuawisnipe Suunp suoppY
/s31eS
3§20|g $S0ID
755°42 6059’8
78542 60'59°8
005'68
00069
r5'65'T
°6s'LT 00Z'0v'T
0S8°CTT
Jedh
ay3 Jupunp Jesk 3y
spuawisnlpe Sulnp suorippy
/s3ies
)20|g SsCI9

T89'TY'S

189S
022'02T
L6ETR'T
008'T

$9T°48'T

YT0T'0'T0
esy

9SY'T6'TT
00£29

00£79

GES V'
L60°TL'Y
008'T

¥97°0T'E

STOZ'0°TO

jesy

(‘pau0D) sUBWRLESS [EIURLYY PBIEPHOSU0) OF SION
QILIWIT HYOMLIN QYO LYYVHE

(9Z0pSZ 2t JB3A SNoiARId) SZY'EPE 2 O uonelnaldsp (2103 3yl 40 IN0 (e

230N
(11 + 1) = [E3OL SIASSY pPaxid {el0L

:syasse ajqiaueru ‘|
(v)
syuawdmbs oo
$2UNXI4 1R INYLING
Assuyyde R 3ueld
siayndwo)
:s1asse a|qidue] ||

sig|naied

{11 + 1) = [E30L S12sSY Paxid [Q0L

21eMU0S JANCWOD
:syasse ajqiduely] ||
(v)
SUOfIB({BISU| |E21I3(
syuawdinb3 830
S3UNINI4 7@ 2UNYuUIng
AlBUiy2e A %5 1uejd
s1azndwo)
puel
:syasse s|qiSue] |

sie|naiued

s1assy paxid 0T



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd )

11

12

Intangible Assets under Development

Particulars

Capitai Work In Progress
Expenditure During Construction Period
Salary & Allowances
Finance Cost :
Finance Charges
Interest on ICD
Depreciation
Other iixpenses :
Rent
Rates & Taxes
Professional Fees
Tiavelling & Conveyance Expenses
Car Hire Charges
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses
Office Maintenance Expenses
Repair & Maintenance Road
Comimunication expenses
Insurance costs
Statutory Audit Fees
Bank Charges
Printing & Stationery
Postage & Courier charges
Electricity Expenses
Miscellanecus Expenses
Sub total
Less: Interest Income
Other Income

Non-Current Investment
Particulars

Long Term Investment (At cost) Trade, Fully Paid up

1) In Bonds and Debentures (Unquoted)A

Unsecured Participatory Convertible Debentures
Investment in associate

In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

ABC

Investment [n assoclates

Fully paid equity shares of associate companies

Add/(Deduct):
Accumulated share In profit/{loss) of the associate companles at the begining of the
year
Share in profit/(loss)(net) of the associate companies-during the year

Total {I+i)

A Refer Note 25.6

As at
31st Ma 2016
2,85,80,40,079

2,48,75,805

13,54,28,659
13,76,713
573,123

12,26,539
10,43,866
7,45,58,932
22,06,414
23,22,071
11,91,207
17,08,263
53,12,369
2,10,760
6,70,732
84,270
1,01,99,579
1,96,595
15,309
1,19,835
34,28,063
3,12,53,89,183
5,34,03,043
3,03,52,218

As at
31st March, 2016

5,47,70,255

4,25,03,57,281

(28,30,57,731)
(41,48,00,436)
3,55,24,99,114

3,60,72,69,369

(Amount in )
As at
31st March, 2015

1,50,27,22,653

1,17,80,393

5,06,47,111
8,43,836
2,76,978

3,65,200
8,700
4,68,21,386
12,34,141
9,63,403
5,25,739
6,68,489

1,07,318
4,48,316
84,270
68,05,407
1,17,940
15,309

37,045

1 74
1,68,63,67,309
4,95,42,410

1,61,76,98,845

In
As at
31st March, 2015

2,45,93,600

3,78,77,35,483

(8,96,54,845)
3,50,46,77,752

3,52,92,71,352

8 The Company has pledged its investment in shares aggregating to ¥ 2,68,35,41,226/- (Previous Year ¥ 2,47,62,53,958/-}in favour of

Security Trustees for loan taken by Subsidiary and Associate Companies.

¢ Investments in associates include goodwill of ¥ 2,13,26,93,707/- (Previous Year ¥ 1,67,00,71,909/-).



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

13

14

15

16

17

18

Long-Term Loans and Advances
Hnseeuied, U i)
Particulars
Capital Advance
Security Deposit
Advance against Warrant/OCIPD to related parties (refer note 25.3)
Other Advances:
Advance Income Tax including Tax deducted at Source ( Net of
Provision ¥ 10,32,000 (P.Y ¥5,07,000)
WCT Receivable
MAT Credit Entitlement

Other Non-Current Assets
ured, considered

Particulars

Unallocated borrowing cost

Total

Trade Receivables

cansidered
Particulars
Debt for a period exceeding six months from the due date
Other Debts

Total

Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
Balances with scheduled banks - In Current Accounts
Invesment in Liquid Mutual Fund
bank balances
Fixed Deposits with Banks (having balance maturity 3 months or less)
(held as security deposit with Bank against issue of bank guarantee)

Total

Short Term Loans and Advances
considered

Particulars

given to related parties
Loans and Advances:
Prepaid Expenses
Advance to staff
Advance to Vendor and others
Total

note 25.3)

Other Current Assets
considered

Particulars

Interest accrued and due on 1o others

Interest accrued but not due from related parties

Other receivables

Others

Total ViV

As at
31st 2016
36,53,82,583
2,87,800
66,11,90,000

2,98,24,891
42,59,126

19,76,400

As at
31st March, 2016
30,69,682

30,69,682

As at
31st March, 2016
1,12,04,759
1,18,84,958

2,30,89,717

As at
31st March, 2016

62,986
7,90,67,257
10,15,80,169

18,07,10,412

As at
31st March, 2016
10,84,10,964

1,40,576
3,150
25,89,18,741
36,74,73,431

As at
31st March, 2016
2,45,41,107
5,13,64,250
23,24,917

PAN 7,82,30,274

Amount in %)
As at

31st March, 2015
59,98,57,707

3,33,839

1,90,43,288

21,67,274
5,07,000
72,19, 108

As at
31st March, 2015

unt In
As at
31st March, 2015
47,80,192
1,48,02,517

1,95,82,709

in%
As at
31st March, 2015

57,477
4,27,11,452
1,56,212

4,53,59,345

8,82,84,486

In
As at
31st March, 2015

23,150
3,05,000
3,28,150

in%)
As at
31st March, 2015
2,56,39,254

6,57,374
26,618
2,63,23,246



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

19

20

21

22

23

Revenue from Operations

Particulars

Sale of services:
Toll operations and maintenance
Project Management Consultancy

Total

Other Income

Particulars

Interest Income

Less: Adjusted with corresponding interest expenses

Liability no longer required written back

Operational Expenses

Particulars

Toll Operating Expenses

Total

Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars

Salaries & Allowances
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

Total

Finance Costs

Particulars

Interest expenses on borrowings

Less: Capitalised to Intangible assets under development
Less: Capitalised to Investments (Refer note 25.6)

Total

Year ended
31st March, 2016

75,00,000

75,00,000

Year ended
31st March, 2016
7,63,61,681

4,13,40,686 3,50,20,995

4,205

3,50,25,200

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2016

2,77,89,350
11,86,629
95,867

2,90,71,846

Year ended
31st March, 2016

59,01,84,880
8,59,14,425
46,94,70,920

3,47,99,535

{Amount in
Year ended
31st March, 2015

6,12,26,658
2,31,00,083

8,43,26,741

in
Year ended
31st March, 2015

ountin )
Year ended
31st March, 2015

5,00,20,674

5,00,20,674

Year ended
31st March, 2015

2,76,45,948
12,45,886
1,30,796

2,90,22,630

ntin
Year ended
31st March, 2015

45,68,38,276
5,14,90,947
39,53,67,388

99,79,941



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

24 Other Expenses

Particulars

Rates & Taxes

Insurance Premium

Legal & Professional Fees
velling and Conveyance

Repairs & Maintenance- Others
Postage, Telegram & Telephone

Director Fees
Demat Charges

Business Development Expenses

Payment to Auditor :
-For Audit
-Other Services

Printing & Stationery

Total

Year ended
31st March, 2016

1,85,577
33,098
16,55,006
34,79,311
4,48,085
1,15,862
1,05,000
2,67,838
4,40,241

3,15,250
76,143
67,306

3,44,941

75,33,658

(Amount in
Year ended
31st March, 2015

5,08,290
13,571
79,03,644
45,08,244
4,42,702
1,37,964

87,845

1,84,270
93,488
75,737

2,96,772

1,42,52,527



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

25

Other disclosures (Contd.)

251 In accordance with Accounting Standard 21 “Consolidated Financial Statements” notified by Central Governmenl under
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group include the financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary. Enterprises over which the Company exercises significant influence are
considered for preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements as per Accounting Standard 23 “Accounting for investments

The subsidiary and associates considered in the preparation of these cansolidated financial statements are:—

Name of the Party & Nature of relationship cOun‘try of
Origin
ry
Solapur To Pvt. Ltd. India
Associates
Orissa Steel Expressway Pvt. Ltd. India
Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. Ltd. India
Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway Pvt. Ltd. India
Shree Jagannath Expressways Pvt. Ltd. India
Potin - Pangin Highway Pvt, Ltd. India
Guruvyoor Infrastructure Pvt Ltd {w.e.f 30th March, 2015) India

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for:

Particulars

Contingent
Income Tax ( F.Y. 2012-13)

rsement to NHAI for IE remuneration prior to-appointed date i.e 3rd lune 2014

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [Net of
Advances ¥ 583 P.Y %69, 707

% Holding % Holding
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2016 2015
98.04% 98.04%
44.60% 44.60%
29.33% 29.33%
39.00% 39.00%
26.00% 26.00%
40.00% 40.00%
26.80% 26.80%
in¥)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2016 2015
23,10,000
31,49,552 59,50,930
4,59,14,53,184 5,53,74,19,440



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

253 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard (AS) 18 - Related Party Disclosures
(1) Related Parties:

SI.No Name of the Party & Nature of relationship Country of Origin

A Investor having control

Infrastructure Project Development Capital India
B8  Associates

Orissa Steel Expressway Pvt. Ltd. India
Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. Ltd. India
Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway Pvt. Ltd. India

ree Jagannath Expressways Pvt. Ltd. India

Potin - Pangin Highway Pvt. Ltd India
Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. India

C  KeyManagement Personnel (KMP)
Tewari (CEO & Manager upto 30th June, 2015 & Chief Technical

Officer w.e.f. 1st july, 2015) India
Anurag Kuba (CEO w.e.f. 29th June, 2015 and upto 16th June, 2016) India
Alok Nagpal (CFO upto 7th July, 2015) India
Sanjay Banka (CFO & Company Secretary w.e.f 17th December 2015) India
Samita Lahiri (Company Secretary upto 31st August, 2015) India
D of KMP

Roli Tewari (Wife of Asim Tewari) India

of Alok Nagpal) India

The transactions with related parties have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those on normal
commercial terms.

No amount has been written back / written off during the year in respect of due to / from related parties. The amount due from
related parties are good and hence no provlision for doubtful debts in respect thereof is required.

(11) Summary of Transactions with Related Parties
(Amount in T}
Nature of Transaction &
Name of the related Balances
Investor

2015-16 2014-15

Purchase of Equity Shares
- Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway 50,18,62,500
Pvt. Ltd.

Infrastructure Project Development Capital
w.e.f. 28 March, 2013)



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

summa of Transactions with Related Parties (Amount in T)
Name of the related party Nature of Transaction & 2015-16 2014-15
Outslanding Balances
Associates :
Transactions :
Inter Corporate Deposit given 56,20,00,000
Inter Corporate Deposit refund (56,00,00,000)
Interest Income on [CD given 1,96,73,951
Income from Project Management 2,00,00,000

Consultancy

Balance due:

inter Corporate Depaosit Balance 20,00,000

Cost of Investment pledged as 27,06,32,239 24,11,80,445
collateral for loan taken from bank

Orissa Steel Expressway Pvt. Ltd

Interest Accrued but not due 1,14,885
Trade Receivable {incl service tax) 1,04,72,000 1,04,72,000

Transactions :
Advance against Unsecured 13,84,90,000
Participatory Convertible Debenture

Unsecured Particlpatory Convertible 5,50,00,000
Debenture alloted against
Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. Ltd application money
Balance due:
Advance against Unsecured 13,84,90,000
Particlpatory Convertible Debenture

Cost of Investment pledged as 51,19,40,019 82,50,06,054
collateral for loan taken from bank

Transactions :

Inter Corporate deposit given 10,64,10,964
Interest Income on ICD given 23,04,080
Balance due:
Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway Pvt. Ltd.
& P v inter Corporate deposit 10,64,10,964
Interest Accrued but not due 23,04,080
Cost of Investment pledged as 71,85,08,676 64,03,02,169

collateral for loan taken from bank

Balance due:
Unsecured Partlcipatory Optionally 2,75,89,255 2,45,93,600
Potin - Pangin Highway Pvt. Ltd. Cost of Investment pledged as 73,664 65,646

collateral for loan taken from bank

Transactions :

Advance against Warrant/OCPID 52,27,00,000
Interest income on the Advance 5,43,83,650
agalnst Warrant/OCPID
Shree Jagannath Expressways Pvt. Ltd. Balance due:
Advance against Warrant/OCPID 52,27,00,000
Interest Accrued but not due 4,89,45,285
Cost of Investment pledged as 47,12,26,007 13,59,45,727

collateral for loan taken from bank

Trade receivable 24,47,197
Guruvyoor Infrastructure Pvt, Ltd. Cost of Investment pledged as 71,11,60,621 63,37,53,917
collateral for loan taken from bank



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

25.5

25.6

25.7

(I1) Summary of Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

(C) Key Management Personnel

(Amount in )

Asim Tewari Salarv & Allowances 65,66,763 65,15,051
Anurag Kuba Salary & Allowances 1.06,15,431 NA
Alok Nagpal Salary & Allowances 21,89,330 72,73,429
Sanjay Banka Salary & Allowances 25,81,363 NA
Samita Lahiri Salary & Allowances 5,59,898 17,30,942
(D) Relatives of KMP

Roli Tewari Car Hire Charges 3,00,000
Sonia Nagpal Car Hire Charges 3,00,000
Earnings per Share

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share
Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (in )

31st March, 2016

(44,37,36,094)

31st March, 2015

(21,24,22,621)

Weighted average number of Equity Shares Basic {Nos.) 10000000 1,00,00,000
Weighted average number of Potential Equity Shares {Nos.)

Weighted average number of Equity Shares Diluted (Nos.) 10000000 1,00,00,000
Nominal Value of Equity per share (3) 10 10
Basic Earnings per share () (44.37) (21.24)
Diluted Earnings per share (%) (44.37) (21.24)

Segment Reporting

The Group is primarily engaged in a single business segment of own, build, develop, design, operate, transfer road and related services.
All the activities of the Company revolve around the main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting

Standard -17 “Segment Reporting” notified by the Central Government under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

The Holding Company is presently engaged in the business of designing, building, operating, maintaining and carrying out all other
activities pertaining to road projects. As per the guidelines of respective Government Authority and the requirements of the Concession
Agreements, such road projects are required to be implemented under the Built, Operate & Transfer {BOT) model by creating Special
Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) so that after the concession period, the SPV can be transferred to the respective authority on an “as is where is

basis”. The Holding Company has, therefore, invested in various road projects under the aforesaid SPV model.

These investments have been made on a long term basis with an objective to obtain return and capital appreciation after the
commencement of commercial operations of the respective Project.

Based on a legal opinion, the Holding Company has treated these investments as “Qualifying Asset”. As required by Accounting Standard
16 on ‘Borrowings Costs’, Accounting Standard 13 on ‘Investments’ and in accordance with the accounting concept of ‘Matching costs
and revenues’, the Holding Company has capitalised borrowing cost incurred on funds borrowed exclusively for investments in SPVs as
part of the cost of investments.

Accordingly, Non-Current Investments and Other Non-Current Assets includes borrowing cost of T 120,00,20,254/- including ¥
46,64,01,238/- for the year (As at 31st March 2015: ¥ 73,36,19,016/- including ¥ 32,28,03,982/- for that year) and ¥ 3,069,682/ including
¥ 3,069,682/ for the year (As at 31st March 2015 : X Nil) respectively incurred on loans borrowed for acquisition of these investments.

The differences in accounting policies of Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway Pvt. Ltd. and Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. Ltd. are not material in
the context of consolidation of the said associates in these consolidated financial statements.

RA

AL



BHARAT ROAD NETWORK LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

25,8 Additignal Information as per Schedule HEof the Companies Act, 2013

Net Assets, i.e. total assets minus

total liabllitles
Name of the entlty As % of As % of
cansolidated net Amount consolidated
assets profit or loss
Parent

1 Bharat Road Network Limited 532.26% (3,47,52,44,498) 6.36%
Subsldiarles
Indian:

1 Solapur Tollways Pvt. Ltd. 4.95% (3,23,23,224) 0.17%
Minority Interests in subsidlaries 0.00% 0.00%
Associates (investment as per equity method)

Indian

1 Steel Expressway Pvt. Ltd. -84.47% 55,15,53,634 0.03%

2 Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. Ltd. 17.26% {11,27,19,801) 53.34%

3 Ghaziabad Aligarh Expressway Pvt. Lid. 171.14% 1,11,74,46,501 32.82%

4 Shree Jagannath Expressways Pvt. Ltd. -92.00% 60,06,79,018 0.00%

S  Potin - Pangin Highway Pvt. Ltd. {(w.e.f. 2nd December, 2013) -0.02% 1,55,543 0.01%

6 Infrastructure Pvt Ltd (w.e.f, 30th 20 -106.83% 69.75,26,051 7.27%

100.00% (65,29,26,775) 100.00%
Note: Figures are imination of related party transactions between entitles considered for consolidation.

25.9 Earnings / Expenses in Foreign Currency - X Nil (Previous Year ¥ Nif).

in

Share in profit or loss (Profit after
tax)

Amount

(2,82,06,318)

(7,35,340)

(1,31,719

{45,510)

25.10 The previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding
year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the

current year.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302082E

\

{ca

Partner

Mernbership No.17643

Place : Kolkata

Firm Registration No.302082E

KOLKATA

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Bajrang K Choudhary
Director

DIN : 00441872

Place : New Delhi
Date ; 19th Sept, 2016

Brahm Dutt
Chairman

DIN : 05308508

Place : New Delhi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016

Sanjay Banka

CFO & Company Secretary
Place : New Delhi

Date: 19th Sept, 2016
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Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiariesfassaciate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

of
crling Year
citing Currency
Capita!
Reserves & Surplus
Assets
Liabtlities
Investmeants
lurnover
Profit/(Loss) belore Tax
Piovision (or Taxation
after Tax
Dividend
of

Nates:

Solapur Tollways
Pvt. Ltd. (w.e.f 3rd
2013)
Marih 34, 2010
INR
50,00,004
1,64,09,
3,91,11,46,219
3,91,11,46,219

(7,35,340j
(7,35,340)

98.04%

1 Names of subsidiaries which are yet 1o commence operations: Solapur Tollways Pvt itd
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold duting the year: None

Name of Asscoclate
Relationship
Latest audited Balance Sheet
2 company on year
No.
Amaunt of Investment in Associates
Extent of Holding %
3 Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associate is not consolldated
5 Networth altributabe to Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet
6 Profit / (Loss) for the year
in Consolidation
ii. Not Considered In Consolidatlon

Part “B": A

Ghazlabad Aligarh  Kurukshetra  Orlssa Steel
Expressway Private Expressway Expressway Private
Limited Private Limited Limitad

Associate Associate Associate

Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2016 Mai 31, 2016
75655000 30581950 34949667
1,40,87,47,438  92.57.72,293 55,23,13,880
39.00% 29.33% 44.60%
Control of

Controi of 39% of 29.33% of Total Control of 44.60% of
Total Share Capital  Share Capital  Total Share Capital

NA. N.A. N.A
60,94,35,163 5.82,97,5311 34,88,88,566
(14,56,50,469) (23,66,93,98C (1,31,71¢
N.A

1 Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: None
2 Names of associates ar joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold duiing the year: None

Potin Pangin

Highway Shree Jagannath  Guruvayoor
Private Expressways Infrastructure
Limited Private Limited Private Limited
Assaciate Associate Associate
Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2016
20000 38452400
2,75,121 60,06,79,018 76,25,69.531
40.00% 26.00% 26 80%
Control of
40.00% of  Control of 26 00% Control of 26.80%
Total Share of Total Share of Total Share
Capital Capital Capital
N.A. N.A, N.A
1.22.503 38.45,24.000 20,05,01,500
{45,51C N.A.
N.A,

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Bajrang K Choudhary
Director

DIN : 00441872

Place : New Delhl
Date : 19th Sept, 2016

Brahm Dutt

Chairman

DIN : 05308308

Place : New Deihi
Date: 1

CFO & Caompany Secretary
Piace : New Deihi
Date: 19th Sept, 2016






